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QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES #1 
SOLICITATION NO. UB-20-W-27 

Tenant Data Telecom Renovation Project in LC - AC Rec Center 
December 20, 2019 

 
 
 
To all interested vendors:  
 
This list of Questions and Responses #1, dated December 20, 2019, is being issued to clarify 
certain information contained in the above named solicitation. The statements and interpretations 
of contract requirements, which are stated in the following questions of potential bidders/offerors, 
are not binding to the University of Baltimore (UB), unless UB expressly amends the solicitation.  
 
 

1) QUESTION:  On the 3rd floor of the Learning Commons, at the front (Candy Cane shaped) 
desk area; the drawing show the desk connected to the wall but currently there is an existing 
swinging door.  Will this in fact be extended to connect to the wall?   Please provide design 
of pathway to feed the reception desk area. 

 
RESPONSE: The swing door will remain. Please reference Amendment #1 dated 
12/20/2019  

 
2) QUESTION:  Can UB confirm the pathways from floor to floor?  Are the penetrations as 

drawn on the plans or to be rerouted through UB closets?  The riser drawing for the 
Learning Commons indicates that the fiber optic cable will be run vertically between the 
three stacked BPD IDFs (requiring new core drills).  During the walk-thru, it was explained 
that the vertical runs should go through the existing sleeves in the OTS IDFs.  Please clarify 
which pathway is acceptable.   

 
RESPONSE: All fiber must be routed through the UB OTS closets then cabled over 
to the BPD closets on each level. 

 
3) QUESTION:  Can drawings depicting the 1st floor telecom room that the new fiber will be 

pulled to in the Academic Center?  Show the IT Rooms and their relationship to the 2nd 
floor Electrical/IT closet. Electrical drawings would be preferred if available.   

 
RESPONSE: Existing Academic Center architectural floors plans of the south wing 
floors 1 – 4 attached for reference. 
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4) QUESTION:  In the Academic Center Building, can UB confirm the pathway from the 

new 3rd floor data closet, through the gym area and up to the 4th floor?  
 

RESPONSE: Please reference Amendment #1 dated 12/20/2019 
 
5) QUESTION:   Can class schedules please be provided? 

 
RESPONSE: When vendor is scheduled to install cabling inside occupied space, 
classes will not be held in those locations.  

 
6) QUESTION:   Please verify that man-lift equipment can be utilized on the 3rd floor in the 

basketball court areas OF THE Academic Center?  
 

RESPONSE: Yes. Lift must have pneumatic non-marking tires or pneumatic tires 
with tire socks when used in the basketball court area. 

 
 

7) QUESTION:   Does the building have an elevator suitable to transport lift equipment to 
the 3rd floor? Please verify what the weight capacity of the elevator is. 

 
RESPONSE: Due to the age of the freight elevator the maximum weight capacity for 
any lift equipment being transported to the 3rd floor is 2000 lbs. 

 
 

8) QUESTION:   What surface protection is required for the basketball court floors (i.e. 
plywood)? 

 
RESPONSE: Masonite or plywood sheets must be used in all areas where lifts or 
scaffolding is intended to be used within the basketball court area. 

 
9) QUESTION:   Will the Electrical Contractor/General Contractor be installing the 

bonding conductor between the Telecom Contractor provided Telecommunications 
Grounding Bus bar and the main building ground/Telecommunications Main Grounding 
Bus bar? 
 
RESPONSE: The Data Contractor is responsible for this work. 

 
10) QUESTION:   Who will be responsible for installing new vertical and horizontal pathway 

sleeves for the Telecom pathways? 
 

RESPONSE: The Data Contractor is responsible for installing vertical and horizontal 
pathway sleeves for telecom pathways. 

 
11) QUESTION:   Who will be responsible for providing the AiPhone equipment? 
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RESPONSE: The tenant (Baltimore City Police Department) will supply that 
equipment. 

 
12) QUESTION:   Please verify MBE Requirements. 

 
RESPONSE: This procurement does not have an MBE goal. However, MBE 
participation is encouraged. 
 

13) QUESTION:  With the Holidays affecting not only the Structured Cabling Estimating 
team but also the availability of the Distributors to provide pricing, is there any way to 
extend this bid to January 10th? 

 
RESPONSE: Please note that all the dates listed in the RFQ UB-20-W-27 are correct. 
If there is a date change, the University will issue an amendment.  
 

14) QUESTION:  Who is responsible for painting new conduit or surface raceway to match 
the color of the walls especially where walls are multi colored? 

 
RESPONSE: A G.C. will be hired to paint raceway under a separate contract. 

 
15) QUESTION:  Since demolition has already started, who is responsible for demoing the 

data ports and closet terminations per note D16?   
 

RESPONSE: The demo of the data ports on those floors is the Data contractor’s scope 
and is to be completed by 2/5/2020 per the RFQ. 

 
16) QUESTION:  During the walk through it was stated that wiring in the floor boxes on the 

3rd floor Learning Center was to have the jacks and faceplates removed and the cables 
were to be labeled with termination information so that in the future they could be re-
jacked and face-plated. Drawing indicates cables in the floor boxes is to be removed in 
their entirety per D17. Please clarify exactly what is required on each floor.   

 
RESPONSE: Please reference Amendment #1 dated 12/20/2019 
 

17) QUESTION:  Drawing A 02_LC Computer Lab 1 and 2 indicate that each positions in 
the tiered seating should get a Dual Data location (7 positions per Tier).  During walk 
through, it was mentioned that these locations should get 1 cable each.  Please clarify 
what is required at each symbol location.   

 
RESPONSE: Per Drawing A 02_LC Computer Lab 1 and 2, in each classroom, there 
are six existing duplex power outlets per tier (7 tiers total per room). Data contractor 
is to install six duplex data ports per tier; at each of the 7 tiers. This will provide a 
single data port for each of the 12 computer stations located on each of the 7 tiers. 
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18) QUESTION:  There are new Work Area Outlet locations that indicate that they are to be 
cabled to the existing UB/OTS Data Rooms. Is there enough existing patch panel space 
available to land these new cables or should new patch panels and horizontal managers be 
provided? 

 
RESPONSE: Data contractor will demo a sufficient number of data ports on the 3rd 
and 4th floor of the Learning Commons to provide enough space on the existing patch 
panels for the number of data ports noted as keynote T7. 

 
19) QUESTION:  What is the desired pathway for the set of three tables on the lower level of 

Rooms 207, 209 and 211 without creating a small ramps for the cables to go through so 
that wheel chairs still have access to the seats in the first row?   

 
RESPONSE: Please reference Attachment A – Learning Commons Tenant 
Renovation Construction Document - Sheet A 02_LC for notes associated with data 
cabling to instructor’s stations only. 

 
20) QUESTION:  Are all tables going to be fed from cable whips attached to the adjacent 

risers for the next level?   
 

RESPONSE: Please reference Attachment A – Learning Commons Tenant 
Renovation Construction Document - Refer to Sheet A 02_LC for notes associated 
with data cabling to instructor’s stations only. 

 
21) QUESTION:  Does each table get two cables per each seat show on the drawings, so that 

a 4 seat table gets 8 cables and what type of faceplate/surface mount is desired at each 
table?   

 
RESPONSE: Please reference Attachment A – Learning Commons Tenant 
Renovation Construction Document - Refer to Sheet A 02_LC for notes associated 
with data cabling to instructor’s stations only. 

 
22) QUESTION:  Please confirm that all WAP are cabled to the UB IT Closets. 

 
RESPONSE: Yes, all WAP are cabled to the UB IT Closets. 

 
23) QUESTION:  Please confirm that armored plenum fiber can be used to save space in the 

penetrations between floors. 
 

RESPONSE: Yes, armored plenum fiber must be used to save space in the 
penetrations between floors.  Please refer to Attachment C: UB OTS Telecom 
Standards 2019 v2.10 

 
24) QUESTION: Is there only one "TV Cart" Area on second floor where the lockers were in 

the Learning Commons Building?  
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RESPONSE: Read drawings carefully. There is no “TV Cart” Area in the Learning 
Commons. The Learning Commons will have wall mounted monitors were the lockers 
were located. The TV Cart will be used in the AC Rec Center Basketball court area. 

 
25) QUESTION:  Please confirm that there is sufficient space in the racks in the OTS MDF 

in LC-115D to accommodate the new LIU.   
 

RESPONSE: Yes, there is sufficient space in the racks. 
 

26) QUESTION:  Please confirm that surface mount raceway or conduit is acceptable in 
locations where similar has already been used for other cables. 

 
RESPONSE:  Yes, surface mount raceway or conduit must be used. 

 
27) QUESTION:  Please provide type and length of fiber patch cords required?(ex. SM LC to 

LC Duplex 1 Meter Long Qty 6 ) 
 

RESPONSE: This procurement does not require fiber patch cables.   
 

28) QUESTION:  Is the telecom contractor providing and installing the TGB in each IDF and 
the electrical contractor is providing and installing the TBB and connecting to building's 
grounding system? 

 
RESPONSE: The telco contractor is responsible for this work. 

 
29) QUESTION:  Are there Rack Elevation Drawings ready for distribution at this time? 

 
RESPONSE: There are no Rack Elevation Drawings to be distributed. 

 
30) QUESTION:  Only the cost for all materials that are purchased by the contractor can be 

"passed through" to the university? 
 

RESPONSE: No, the materials cost is not a pass-through to the University. The 
materials cost is the contractor responsibilities.  

 
31) QUESTION:  Is there any copper backbone to the BPD IT Rooms from the Building's 

MDF? 
 

RESPONSE: No, there is not copper backbone to the BPD IT Rooms from the 
Building's MDF. 
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32) QUESTION:  During the walk through, there was mention of a Systimax 6 and 12 Strand 
SM Armored Plenum Cable to connect the MDFs to the BPD IT Closets. In the UB 
Standards Telecommunications Document, it calls for Sumitomo blown fiber. Should the 
new fiber run be Sumitomo SM Blown Fiber? 

 
RESPONSE: Per the RFQ ,Armored Plenum Cable is to be used; no blown fiber is 
required. 

 
33) QUESTION:  Please provide the requirements and quantities of copper patch cords? 

 
RESPONSE: There are no requirements or quantities of copper patch cords. 

 
34) QUESTION:  During the walk through, it was mentioned that the new fiber enclosures will 

be Systimax Manufacturer. UB Standards doc calls for Corning Termination equipment. 
Please clarify which equipment manufacturer should be used? 

 
RESPONSE: Per the RFQ, the Commscope Systimax equipment manufacturer is to 
be used.  

 
35) QUESTION:  During the walkthrough, it was mentioned that cable tray/basket tray outside 

of the IDFs was not required. If required, can drawings be provided with the desired 
pathway? 

 
RESPONSE: No cable trays are required in this RFQ 

 
36) QUESTION:  Are Arlington Cable Loops an acceptable alternative to Erico/Caddy J-

Hooks? 
 

RESPONSE: Yes, Arlington Cable Loops or Erico/Caddy J-Hooks must be used. 
 

37) QUESTION:  BPD Training Academy Riser indicates the cable connecting the AC MDF 
to the 3rd Floor BPD IT/Data Closet should be 6 Strand SM. However, Drawing A 01_AC 
Note T5 which indicates a 12 Strand SM is placed against the BPD IT/Data Room. How 
many strands of fiber are required for AC IT/Data Closet? 

 
RESPONSE: Please reference Amendment #1 dated 12/20/2019 

 
38) QUESTION:  In some cases as in Note 11 asking for the single data cable and there is NO 

Half Shaded Tringle as in Room 336 and Room 337 next to a Wall Mount Monitor. Then 
in other cases, the note is placed against the Half shaded triangle marked "New PBD" which 
the legend indicates a dual data in the Reception Area. Is the single data to be provided in 
addition to the dual data per symbol.  Does the Defensive Training Rooms 336 and 337 get 
a dual plus a single for the camera or just a single data cable? 
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RESPONSE: For every location where a camera and/or a monitor is located a single 
cable must be pulled to that location at the noted height. In each location there is also 
a note to install a duplex data port for an instructor’s station. 

 
39) QUESTION:  Drawing A 02_LC Classroom 210/212 has 100" Wall Mount Monitors. Is 

the new BPD Dual Data WAO associated with the monitor or should there also be a single 
cable provided for each monitor? 

 
RESPONSE:  For every location where a camera and/or a monitor is located a single 
cable must be pulled to that location at the noted height. In each location there is also 
a note to install a duplex data port for an instructor’s station. Some instructors 
locations will have two duplex data ports based on the equipment needs for that class. 

 
40) QUESTION:  Please confirm that any required penetrations made through cinderblock 

walls (i.e. in classrooms) do not require firestopping unless so required to obtain 
CommScope certification and warranty of the cable plant. 

 
41) RESPONSE: Any required penetrations made through cinderblock walls (i.e. in 

classrooms) do not require firestopping unless so required to obtain CommScope 
certification and warranty of the cable plant. 
 

 
42) QUESTION:  Please confirm that contractors may use existing penetrations, including 

those already occupied by cabling. 
 

43) RESPONSE: Contractors must use existing penetrations, including those already 
occupied by cabling. 
 

 
44) QUESTION:  Please confirm that in Scenario Room #1, Learning Commons Room 206, 

surface raceway and box are to be used on the wall covered in wainscoting (as well as 
any applicable block walls). 

 
45) RESPONSE: Yes, in Scenario Room #1, Learning Commons Room 206, surface 

raceway and box are to be used on the wall covered in wainscoting (as well as any 
applicable block walls). 
 

 
46) QUESTION:  Regarding the workstation outlets on the 4th floor of the Academic Center, 

we discussed a potential pathway which entailed a large structural I-beam supporting the 
gymnasium roof.  If cables are installed along this I-beam, is it permissible to lash the 
cabling to the existing conduit? 
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47) RESPONSE: Yes, if cables are installed along this I-beam, contractor must lash the 
cabling to the existing conduit? 

 
48) QUESTION:  For applicable rooms with surface mounted power strips /Plugmold (i.e. 

Learning Commons Room 214) please confirm that the desired installation method for 
workstation outlets is as follows: 

 

 
 

RESPONSE: The installation method for the workstation outlets in the rooms with 
surface mounted power strips in the Learning Commons are per the above diagram. 

 
49) QUESTION:  For the 4th floor Learning Commons, please confirm the following 

requirements: 
a. There exists several single gang surface mount boxes and associated jacks 
mounted on the floor (adjacent to electrical boxes) 
b. Bidder is to demo these boxes as follows: 

i. Remove faceplate from surface mount box 
ii. Label all cables to match existing labeling 
iii. Cut / remove jacks from all cables 
iv. Coil cabling and leave inside the surface mount box 
v. Provide / install a blank plate on the surface mount box 
 

RESPONSE: Correct, contractor must demo these boxes by removing the faceplate 
from surface mount box, labeling all cables to match existing labeling, cutting / 
removing jacks from all cables, coiling the cabling and leaving them inside the 
surface mount box.  Contractor must provide / install a blank plate on the surface 
mount box. 
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Date Issued: December 20, 2019  Issued by: ____________________________ 
              Nina L. Baxter   
              Procurement Officer 


